
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
Councillor Angell (Chair), Councillor Virgo (Vice-Chair),  
Councillors Mrs Birch, Brossard, Gbadebo, MJ Gibson, 
Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, McLean, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Porter and 
Temperton 

Also Invited: 
Councillor Harrison, Executive Member for Culture, Delivery and 
Public Protection 
Timothy Wheadon, Chair of Community Safety Partnership 
Superintendent Felicity Parker, Local Police Commander Bracknell 
& Wokingham  
Alison O’Meara, Head of Community Safety  
 

Thursday 7 October 2021, 6.30 - 9.00 pm 
Online only via MST 

 

 

Agenda 

Item Description Page 

1.  Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute Members. 

 

2.  Minutes of previous meeting  5 - 8 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Commission held on 9 September 2021. 

 

3.  Declarations of Interest and Party Whip   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests and the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of 
the party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an Affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest 
to the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when 
the interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

4.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 

5.  Public Participation   

 To receive submissions from members of the public which have been 
submitted in advance in accordance with the Council’s Public Participation 
Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny. 

 

Sitting as Crime and Disorder Committee 
 

6.  Community Safety  9 - 38 

 To receive a presentation on, and to consider: the performance of the 
Community Safety Partnership and the priorities in the Community Safety 
Plan for the coming year.  
 
The Commission has invited the following guests to address the meeting: 
 

• Councillor Harrison, Executive Member for Culture, Delivery and 
Public Protection 

• Timothy Wheadon, Chair of Community Safety Partnership  
• Superintendent Felicity Parker, Local Police Commander Bracknell & 

Wokingham  
• Alison O’Meara, Head of Community Safety  

 
Members of the Commission are asked to submit technical or detailed 
questions in advance of the meeting. 

 

Return to sitting as Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
 

7.  Council Plan Overview Report  39 - 64 

 Council Plan Overview Report (CPOR) covering the fourth quarter of 2020/21 
is attached.  
 
Members of the Commission are asked to submit technical or detailed 
questions in advance of the meeting. 

 

8.  Work Programme Update   

 Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairs to provide verbal updates on the work 
programme and highlight any proposed changes such as scope, scheduling 
or duration. 
 
The Commission to consider the following review scopes: 

• Residential Parking from the Environment and Communities O&S 
Panel 

• SEND from Education, Skills and Growth O&S Panel 

 
 
 
 
 

To follow 
 

To follow 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Date of next meeting 

The next Overview and Scrutiny Commission meeting is scheduled for 4 November 2021. 
The focus of the meeting will be budget discussions. 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Kirsty Hunt, 01344 353108, kirsty.hunt@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that any special 
arrangements can be made. 

Published: 29 September 2021 



This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
9 SEPTEMBER 2021 
6.30  - 7.45 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Angell (Chair), Virgo (Vice-Chair), Mrs Birch, Brossard, Gbadebo, MJ Gibson, 
McLean and Porter  
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Temperton 
Tracey Wright, Parent Governor Representative 
Mark Glanville, Parent Governor Representative 
  
 Executive Members Present: 
Councillor Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health and Housing   
 
In Attendance: 
Councillor Brown 
 
Also Present: 
Kevin Gibbs, Statutory Scrutiny Officer 
 

25. Minutes of previous meeting  

Councillor MJ Gibson advised that the minutes for 3 August 2021 incorrectly recorded 
his apologies as he had been present for part of the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that, noting the clarification above, the minutes of the meeting of the 
Commission held on 3 August 2021 be approved as a correct record, and signed by 
the Chairman.  
 
It was agreed that the Commission Chair and Vice-Chair write a joint letter to the 
Managing Director – Bracknell Forest Executive Lead for Urgent and Emergency 
Care, NHS Frimley CCG requesting a response to outstanding questions from the 
previous meeting. 

26. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip  

There were no declarations of interest. 
  
There were no indications that members would be participating while under the party 
whip.  

27. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no items of urgent business.  

28. Public Participation  

5

Item 2



 

No submissions had been made by members of the public under the Council’s Public 
Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny.  

29. Health Scrutiny arrangements  

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer reported back to the Commission the findings of his 
review of health scrutiny at Bracknell Forest. The review was requested by the 
Commission in July 2021, to give the Commission assurance that this area of work 
was adequately covered in the Commission’s work plan. The findings confirmed that 
the arrangements were sound.  
 
To ensure that it was clear when the Commission was formally considering health 
matters, the report recommended the following two changes: 
 

 that one meeting per year be designated as the Commission’s Strategic 
Health Scrutiny Committee 

 that the Finance and Wellbeing Panel be retitled as the Health and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 

 
In response to questions, the Statutory Scrutiny Officer confirmed that the 
Commission could call ad-hoc meetings of the Strategic Health Scrutiny Committee, 
in addition to its programmed meetings. 
 
The proposed attendees for the O&S Commission, sitting as the Strategic Health 
Scrutiny Committee, would use the same template as the Crime and Disorder 
Committee. Therefore, the attendees list would be a senior representative of the 
Frimley Integrated Care System, the Executive Member for Adult Services, Health 
and Housing, plus the Executive Director: People. Other health or social care 
partners would be invited based on the substantive topic of the meeting.  
 
It was RESOLVED that: 
 

i) the Commission reschedules one of its meetings per year to sit as the 
Strategic Health Scrutiny Committee  
 

ii) the Finance and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Panel be renamed Health 
and Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 
iii) the Commission leads on the Council Plan theme, Value for Money 

30. Evaluation of the Care leavers' review  

The Commission considered the evaluation of the care leavers’ review undertaken by 
the Education, Skills and Growth Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 
 
The Commission Chair recognised this was the first time the impact of a review had 
been followed up and it was agreed that this good practice should continue as 
standard for all reviews. It was noted that the impact of reviews may be discussed 
with Executive Members when they are invited to the Commission to discuss their 
portfolio. 
 
It was RESOLVED that: 
 

i) the Overview and Scrutiny Commission endorses the Education, Skills and 
Growth Panel’s decision to conclude its scrutiny work into care leavers. 
 

6



 

ii) the Overview and Scrutiny Commission notes the lessons learnt, including:  
 

 reviewing future scoping documents to incorporate learning from 
this follow up review by making clearer the intended outcomes and 
impact of any recommendations.  

 considering what can be accomplished in one day when designing 
a programme of work.  

 reviews should take place no sooner than 6 months after the 
agreed implementation date to allow the impact to be embedded. 

31. Work Programme Update  

Councillor MJ Gibson presented the draft scope for the mental health review by the 
Health and Care Panel. 
 
The following updates to the draft scope document were requested: 
 

i) Panel name to change to the Health and Care Panel, as resolved under item 
6. 

 
ii) The Commission Chair queried the reference to one third of residents having 

reported that the pandemic had negatively affected their mental health. 
The scope needs to be clear whether the data refers to all residents or 
only residents surveyed in the Bracknell Forest COVID Community Impact 
Assessment of July 2021.  

 
iii) The Commission requested that the actual numbers involved in the 31% 

increase in referrals to drug and alcohol services be included in the scope. 
 
The Commission recognised that mental health is a huge topic with many different 
aspects. It was recognised that this scope focuses on early intervention, and on 
eating disorders and drug and alcohol services. It was noted that the review needs to 
focus on tangible, practical steps to improve outcomes.   
 
Subject to the three updates above, the mental health review scope was endorsed. 
 
 
Each Panel Chair provided a verbal update on work programme progress. 
 
Health and Care Panel 
 
The blue badge review will be considered by the Executive on 21 September.  
 
Councillor MJ Gibson thanked the chairs, councillors and officers for their support as 
he transitioned to Chair of the Health and Care Panel.  
 
Environment and Communities Panel 
 
Councillor John Porter advised that the food waste review will be considered by the 
Executive on 21 September. The residential parking review is next to be scoped. 
 
Education, Skills and Growth Panel 
 
Councillor Mrs Birch advised that the Community Infrastructure Levy review had 
agreed draft recommendations and the report was being prepared. The report is 
expected at the November Commission.  

7



 

 
The review had benefited from very good engagement, with about 12-16 attendees at 
every meeting, and received good feedback from a parish clerk who had felt included 
and listened to. 
 
Councillor Mrs Birch advised of a panel meeting on 22 September for all Education, 
Skills and Growth panel members to get together and reflect on the past year’s 
activity, as well as prepare for the upcoming SEND review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

8



Bracknell Forest
Community Safety Partnership (CSP)

Annual Presentation: 7 October 2021

Alison O’Meara
Head of Community Safety, BFC

1

Supt. Felicity Parker
Vice-Chair of the CSP and 
Bracknell and Wokingham 
Local Police Area Commander,
Thames Valley Police 

Timothy Wheadon
Chair of the CSP and 
Chief Executive of BFC

9

Item
 6



Content

1. Function and Role of the CSP

2. Crime Overview: 1 September 2020 - 31 August 
2021

3. Partnership-Working Achievements and Successes

4. Work Still to Do

5. Questions

2

10



1.

3

Function and Role of the CSP

11



Legislative Framework of CSPs
• Statutory partnerships laid down in terms of the Crime and 

Disorder Act 1998 and The Crime and Disorder (Formulation 
and Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 2007

• CSPs are required to:

o conduct an annual assessment of crime, anti-social 
behaviour and substance misuse

o publish a 3-year plan (updated annually) of how it intends 
to make the community safer

4

12



Legislative Framework of CSPs (cont)

5

Other legislation which contains duties/ guidance for CSPs/Local 
Authorities:

CONTEST (Prevent Strand) – UK Counter-Terrorism Strategy
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014
Modern Slavery Act 2015
Domestic Abuse Act 2021 (New)

13



CSP Meetings
• CSP Steering Group meets 4 times a year 
• CSP Forum/Workshop meets 1-2 times a year as required
• Chaired by BFC Chief Executive and the Local Police Area 

Commander 
• Delivery groups are in place/set up to deliver against the CSP 

priorities 

Statutory Members:

• Local authority
• Police
• Fire
• Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
• National Probation Service

6

14



Bracknell Forest 
Council Plan 2019 -

2023 
6 Strategic Themes

work with our local police 
to maintain good public 
order, reduce anti-social 
behaviour and combat 

drug-related crime

How does the CSP link into the Council Plan 
and the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 

Plan?

7

CSP
Thames Valley Police 

and Crime 
Commissioner’s Plan
2021 – 2025 (New)

6th Strategic 

Theme:

Communities

15



Thames Valley Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s Plan 2021-2025:

Summary

Priority 1: Strong local policing 

Priority 2: Fighting serious organised crime

Priority 3: Fighting cyber-crime and fraud

Priority 4: Improving the criminal justice system

Priority 5: Tacking Illegal Encampments
8

16



Resources 2021/22

Funding:

• Community Safety Fund (Police and Crime Commissioner):    £134,699 
(Note: to be reduced by £16,000 by 24/25)

• Domestic Abuse (Bracknell Forest Council): £54,600
• Community Safety Team (Bracknell Forest Council):            £172,370
• DA Support in Safe Accommodation: New Burdens Fund £203,767

Community Safety Team Functions:

• Business Management of CSP
• Strategic Lead: Community Safety on behalf of BFC
• Strategic Lead: Domestic Abuse 
• Strategic and Operational Lead: Prevent and Hate Crime 
• Operational Lead: Anti-Social Behaviour
• Strategic Lead: Modern Slavery and Exploitation 

9

17



CSP Priorities 2020-2023 (to be reviewed annually)

1 Tackle the exploitation of children, young people 
and vulnerable adults

2 Reduce incidents of serious violence, sexual 
offences, and knife crime

3 Work with communities to deal with crime and 
anti-social behaviour hotspots (including drug-
related crime)

4 Reduce harm caused by domestic abuse

5 Reduce incidents of residential burglary and theft 
from vehicles

10

18



CSP Sub-Group Structure

11

Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP)

Prevent Steering Group

Channel Panel

Domestic Abuse  
Executive

Multi-Agency Risk 
Assessment Conference 

(MARAC)

Domestic Abuse Forum

Partnership Problem 
Solving Group (PPSG)

Person-Specific Task & 
Finish Groups

Location-Specific Task & 
Finish Groups

Town Centre PPSG

Bracknell Businesses 
Against Crime (BBAC)

Children and Young 
People Serious Violence 

and Exploitaiton 
Strategic Group 

CSP Steering Group

19



Crime Overview:
1 September 2020 – 31 August 

2021

2.

12

20



13

21



Serious Acquisitive Crime
1 September to 31 August

3-year comparison

14

22



% change Residential 
Burglary-
Dwelling 

Residential 
Burglary –

Sheds/Garages

Theft of 
Vehicle

Theft 
from 

Vehicle

Robbery

Bracknell 
Forest

-52% -9% +2% -18% -22%

Thames 
Valley

-38% -8% -7% -27% -35%

Serious Acquisitive Crime (comparing to last year)
Bracknell Forest vs Thames Valley

15

23



% change Violence with 
Injury

Violence 
without Injury

Harassment

Bracknell 
Forest

-14% -3% +45%

Thames Valley -2% -2% +43%

Violence against the Person (comparing to last year)
Bracknell Forest vs Thames Valley

16

24



Crimes involving a Knife:
3-year comparison

Bracknell Forest vs Thames Valley
Crimes involving a 
knife (excluding 
possession of a 
knife)

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Bracknell 
Forest

44 49 45

Thames Valley 1,518 1,589 1,409

17

25



18

Domestic Violence/Abuse (comparing to last year)
Bracknell Forest vs Thames Valley

% change Domestic Violence 
against the Person 

(with injury)

Domestic Violence 
against the Person 

(without injury)

Bracknell Forest -8% -2%

Thames Valley -7% +2%

26



Anti-social Behaviour 
3-year comparison

Anti-social 
Behaviour

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Bracknell 
Forest

1,158 1,216 (+5%) 1,241 (+2%)

19

27



Partnership-Working 
Achievements and Successes

3.

20

28



Serious Violence Prevention 

• Serious Violence and Exploitation Prevention 
Strategic Group for Children and Young People 

• Thames Valley Violence Reduction Unit (VRU)
• Strategic Assessment
• Strategy and Action Plan 
• Serious Violence SPOC
• Thames Valley Together Programme
• Serious Violence Duty

21

29



Domestic Abuse (DA)

• Continued support of those most at risk 
(COVID)

• DA Act 2021 – support in safe accommodation 
duty
oLocal Partnership Board
oNeeds Assessment
oStrategy
oReporting

22

30



Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB)

• Increases in ASB queries

• ASB in Parks and Open Spaces

• FAQ, webpages and automatic responses

• Community Trigger Development

23

31



Partnership Problem-Solving Groups (PPSGs)

24

2019/20 2020/21

Cases Resolved 25 43

• Multi-partner 
• Most complex and challenging

• Person-based and location-based

32



Case Study 1

25

Background:

• Young adult male became unemployed during lockdown
• Mental health deteriorated
• Alcohol use escalated
• Began to commit crime and anti-social behaviour
• Became homeless as parents weren’t able to manage 
• Accommodation options became limited 

Actions:

• Referred to PPSG 
• Rough Sleeper Team and New Hope engaged and supported him through crisis which 

included prosecution
• Adult Social Care provided additional supported to parents

Outcomes:

• Partnership work was successful in that he began to positively engage with services
• Now employed  and continues to be supported

33



Case Study 2

26

Background:

• Anti-social behaviour in and around Market Street linked to street drinking

• Police incidents 

• Linked to an off-licence 

• Failings with CCTV and Challenge 25 policy

Actions:

• Referred to Town Centre PPSG  

• Patrols and enforcement of Public Space Protection Order (PSPO)

• Meeting with owner followed by more failures of licencing conditions

• TVP Licensing application to BFC to revoke licence

• BFC Licensing Hearing resulting in temporary ban 

• Community Protection Notices given to 4 individuals

Outcomes:

• Court hearing upheld BFC decision and instated additional licence conditions

• Reduction in anti-social behaviour in and around the area

34



Work Still To Do 

4.

27

35



Next 12 months…

• Progress with serious violence prevention programme
• Review our response to VAWG
• Convert findings of DA needs assessment into a 

strategy and commission services 
• Understand implications of PCSC Bill and prepare
• Progress with Hate Crime programme 
• Review CSP priorities in 2022
• Progress demand management of ASB queries and 

casework 
• Progress Community Trigger Kite Mark 
• Understand and respond to Vehicle ASB/Car Meets

28

36



Questions

5.

29

37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



To: Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
7 October 2021 

  
 

Council Plan Overview Report 
Statutory Scrutiny Officer 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s briefing paper ‘Putting financial and performance 
management information to good use’ stated that “Performance management is a 
method for improving services – it’s about making things better for local people and 
about ensuring that the way services are planned and delivered provides value for 
money”.  

1.2 The Council Plan Overview Report (CPOR) covering the fourth quarter of 2020/21 is 
attached. This briefing is intended to assist those involved in scrutiny to consider the 
information shared to provide insight into whether improvements or adjustments are 
necessary to support the work of the Council.  

2 Supporting Information 

2.1 The Council Plan sets out the key objectives for 2019 to 2023. It delivers the 
commitments made to residents in the 2019 local election. It puts these commitments 
into the current financial context and provides the council with a strategic direction 
and framework.   

 
2.2  At the end of each quarter, the Chief Executive provides a high-level summary report 

of performance across all services to the Executive, this is known as the Council Plan 
performance overview report or CPOR. This report identifies achievements as well as 
areas of concern and demonstrates how action is being taken where it is required.  

 

2.3 When reviewing the performance data attached Commission members could 
consider: 

 has performance, according to the council’s own measures, been poor for two 
successive quarters?  

 do the number and nature of complaints suggest that there are causes for 
concern?  

 does recent work relating to self-regulation or other assessment or inspection 
activities, suggest that there is cause for common concern?  

 is this a priority for the organisation at the moment?  

 are significant over or underspends being reported?  

 have there been issues with demand or supply and what does it tell us about the 
future?  

 has spending on this specific project or policy achieved value for money and what 
social value has it added?  

 does performance and finance information align with your own research?, 
particularly the experience of service-users  

 Finally consider whether the criteria have been reached to suggest to the 
Commission that further time is spent on a specific matter through: 

o the relevant portfolio member being invited to address the issue at a 
future meeting or 

39

Item 7



o additional review activity taking priority other which scheduled activity 
within the Overview and Scrutiny work programme?  

2.2 Members of the Commission are asked to submit technical or detailed questions in 
advance of the meeting. 

3 Equalities Impact Assessment 

3.1 The Council Plan focuses on the things that matter most to Bracknell Forest 
residents based on a narrative which recognises Bracknell Forest as “the borough of 
opportunity". When aligning performance and finance information with the 
experiences of service users’ members of the Commission should consider the 
potential impact on all of the borough’s residents. 

4 Strategic Risk Management Issues 

4.1 Effective scrutiny is important to the successful functioning of local democracy by 
securing the efficient delivery of Council services and driving improvements. 
Overview and Scrutiny has a vital role in performance management by linking the 
planning and delivery of services to the experiences of and impact upon local people. 
Poor scrutiny can be indicative of wider governance, leadership and/or service 
failure.   

Background Papers 

Putting financial and performance management information to good use, CfGS 
Putting-financial-and-performance-management-information-to-good-use.pdf (cfgs.org.uk) 
 
Contact for further information 
Kevin Gibbs, Executive Director: Resources and Statutory Scrutiny Officer  
01344 355621 
Kevin.gibbs@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  

40

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Putting-financial-and-performance-management-information-to-good-use.pdf
mailto:Kevin.gibbs@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


  Annex A 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
COUNCIL PLAN 
OVERVIEW 
REPORT 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Q4 2020 - 21 
January – March 2021 
 
 
 

Chief Executive: 
Timothy Wheadon 

41



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 2 

Contents 
 

Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary ...................................................... 3 

Section 2: Budget Position .............................................................................. 6 

Section 3: Strategic Themes ........................................................................... 6 

Value for money .............................................................................................. 8 

A strong and resilient economy ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

People have the life skills and education opportunities they need to thrive ....10 

People will live active and healthy lifestyles ..... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

A clean, green, growing and sustainable place ..............................................16 

Strong, safe, supportive and self-reliant communities ....................................18 

Section 4: Corporate Health ...........................................................................20 

a) Summary of People ....................................................................................20 

b) Summary of Complaints .............................................................................21 

c) Strategic Risks and Audits .........................................................................22 

 

Key  
 

 

Performance is very good 

 

Performance is causing concern 

 

Performance is weak 

 RAG rating not applicable  

 Missing data 

 Missing target 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 3 

Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary 
 

1 Introduction  
 
1.1 This report sets out an overview of the council’s performance for the fourth quarter of 

2020/21 (January - March 2021).  The purpose is to formally provide the Executive 
with a high-level summary of key achievements, and to highlight areas where 
performance was not matching targets or expectations, along with any remedial 
action that is being taken.  It complements the detailed Quarterly Service Reports 
(QSRs) and is based upon the performance data that is available to all Members 
online. 
 

1.2 As everyone will know the council continues to function in the context of the Covid-19 
pandemic and many Members and staff have been focused on leading our 
community response.  Some actions in the departmental service plans have been put 
on hold, deferred, or modified.  Indeed, presentation of this report has been delayed 
because key officers involved in its production were deployed to the Council’s surge 
testing efforts in May and June.  Nevertheless, at the end of the fourth quarter 
progress showed:  
 

▪ 101 actions (89%) are green (14 complete, 87 in progress) 

▪ 11 actions (10%) are amber (2 complete, 9 in progress) 

▪ 1 action (1%) is red (in progress) 
 
1.3 Section 3 of this report contains information on the performance indicators across the 

council for each of the strategic themes.  Again, the picture was positive particularly 
in the face of the Covid-19 pandemic.  Of course, in a number of the “red” cases, the 
indicator is meaningless in relation to performance.  Obvious examples include 
attendances at libraries and sport and leisure facilities which were open at reduced 
capacity.  The status for the key indicators in the Council Plan in the third quarter is: 

 

▪ 26 (74%) green 

▪ 2 (6%) amber 

▪ 7 (20%) red 
 

21 further indicators have no set target or data is currently unavailable. 
 

2.       Overview of Q4 and what went especially well 
 
2.1 Putting these obvious challenges to one side, teams delivered services to a high 

standard during the period, especially in response to Covid-19.  I have highlighted 
here a small selection of examples from across the organisation. 

 
2.2  The national lockdown in March 2020 fundamentally changed the delivery of services 

within Bracknell Forest.  Service areas implemented business continuity plans with 
the vast majority operating as closely as possible to business as usual.  It is 
inevitable that Covid-19 has had a significant impact on our whole population, and 
this has been reflective in the council’s activities over the past 12 months. 

 
2.3 There have been many positive achievements despite a wholesale change in our 

way of working.  The adaptability, flexibility and resilience of the teams should be 
mentioned with a continued high level of service provided throughout the year whilst 
the council responded to the Covid-19 Pandemic.  A year that each quarter showed 
the strength and resilience of the services, and their ability to both have a clear plan 

43



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 4 

for the year and to adapt to the changing environment that is part of the world of local 
government.  There had been many high points throughout the year and the year’s 
plan has had to adapt to many unexpected and unplanned events.  Resource plans 
have had to be focused and refocused, all while delivering services at the high 
standard that Bracknell Forest residents expect.   

 
2.4 Within Highways and Transport the A3095 (south) highway improvement scheme 

was largely completed in the quarter.  The forthcoming A322 Sports Centre 
Roundabout improvement scheme is the next major scheme and the work due to on 
the A3095 corridor works gives an effective alternate route.  The LED lighting ‘revisit’ 
project has regained the momentum lost earlier in the pandemic and remaining work 
will continue through 2021.  The Winter Maintenance Programme has been 
effectively delivered, with cyclical maintenance programmes running to near-normal 
levels. 

 
2.5 Within Parks and Countryside, Lily Hill Park was awarded Local Wildlife Site status. 

Our parks and countryside sites remain in high demand with increased use 
throughout the Pandemic.  The Look Out has adapted its offer to deal with the 
various restrictions that have been in place over the year.  This has also enabled a 
review of the services provided with a future transformation of the site being 
developed to bring together this learning and creating a service which makes the very 
best of the forest location. 

 
2.6 After a wait of several months the reopening of retail centres has been the focus of 

activity making sure the retail areas within the Borough were prepared for the 12 April 
reopening date.  Within Bracknell Town Centre demolition works for the former 
Bentall's unit have now commenced, and Sports Direct and associated shops were 
secured for Princess Square.  Work on that store is now visibly underway. 

 
2.7 During the last year the Public Health team have joined Place, Planning and 

Regeneration to strengthen the ‘whole Council’ approach to health and wellbeing.  
This team obviously has been at the forefront of pandemic, in particular dealing with 
numerous health protection initiatives and leading on the development of the 
Council’s Outbreak Management Plan.  This was developed with colleagues from 
across the council.  Outside of covid-19, work has recommenced on developing the 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Bracknell Forest with a Health and Wellbeing 
Board workshop undertaken to inform the strategic priorities to be developed. 

 
2.8 In Delivery Directorate, 3 important strategies were agreed in this quarter.  The 

Customer Experience Strategy talks to how we will continue to engage with the 
residents and visitors of the borough in a smart, efficient and technically competent 
manner, enabling customers rather than just serving them.  The second strategy that 
is linked, is the Digital and ICT strategy.  This strategy talks to our journey of using 
modern IT tools to improve the council’s delivery of services, plus increase access 
and provide resilient systems.  The third strategy was the Climate Change strategy, 
that has measurable, ambitious, annual targets. 

 
2.9 The Climate Change strategy has been a true coproduction between Officers, the 

Executive, the Overview and Scrutiny Commission and the public who participated in 
the Commission’s review process.  Several projects, covered by the strategy, have 
already moved to the implementation stage.  In quarter 4, we have delivered real 
borough wide change, via our “greening waste” strategy.  This project implemented a 
weekly door-step food waste collection service, while encouraging residents to 
recycle more, by reducing our residual waste collection service to three-weekly; the 
first in Berkshire to do so.  Our “easy as 1,2,3” campaign has been very successful 
so far, collecting 536 tonnes of food waste for March, against a projected target of 
325 tonnes.  That initial success has been sustained in subsequent months. 

44



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 5 

2.10 Along with the national picture, events since March 2020 have fundamentally 
changed the delivery of education provision within Bracknell Forest. Much emphasis 
was placed on ensuring children were given opportunities to catch up on any learning 
lost during the lockdown. Schools also provided blended learning which included face 
to face and remote learning for those who needed to self-isolate due to Covid-19. 
The council is grateful to all in the education service especially Headteachers and 
other school leaders, and managers who have consistently supported children and 
young people throughout.  

 
2.11 In picking out these highlights there is a real danger of overlooking the special efforts 

of teams who are not mentioned.  The simple fact is that the whole organisation has 
responded magnificently and continues to deliver effective services. 

 
 

What are we doing about things not going so well? 
 
3.1 Uncertainty around the on-going impact of Covid-19-related pressures continues. 

Government guidance in lockdown 3, saw leisure, libraries and other non-essential 
retail closed.  Over and above our own services, the closing of non-essential retail 
also impacted on car parking income for the Town Centre.  Taken together, our 
customer facing services within the Delivery Directorate, as revenue generating 
services, took the brunt of the customer and financial impact. However, government 
funding support for these services has mitigated much of the lost income to the 
council. Contract Services has also been successful in applying for specific grants to 
support our service delivery partners.  To this end, they have secured £220k from the 
National Leisure Recovery Fund for our leisure centres.  

 
Forward Look 
 
Going forward, the council’s strategic objectives will continue to progress in the coming 
weeks albeit within the constraints of the Covid-19 restrictions and in the context of the 
council’s community response to Covid-19. 

 

Timothy Wheadon 
Chief Executive 

45



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 6 

Section 2: Budget Position  

 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 
The provisional end of year position for the General Fund indicates an underspend of -
£3.615m.  This reflects that while most areas of the Council have seen their costs and / or 
income significantly affected by the Covid pandemic, the additional funding provided by 
Government has proved sufficient to cover the impacts in the 2020/21 year.  Consequently, it 
has not proved necessary to draw down all of the Corporate Contingency included in the 
budget to recognise “normal” financial risks, with the remaining balance of £1.9m comprising 
more than half of the under spend. 
 
It has been resolved at CMT to allocate the Covid funding provided to cover additional costs 
to service areas that have reported pressures during the year, which have not been 
mitigated by the income support for lost sales, fees, and charges.  This recognises the 
difficulty in determining whether pressures experienced in the year relate solely / partly to 
Covid or to other factors.  
 
Details of individual variances are outlined in each department’s Quarterly Service Report 
(QSR). This net under spend comprises the following significant variances: 
 

Central 

 Additional consultancy costs associated with planning appeals (£0.156m).  

 Loss of income within Traffic due to the pandemic, particularly from Street Works 
(£0.131m).  

 Additional income for Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspaces (SANGS) capacity (-
0.129m)  

 Loss of income from the closure of The Lookout due to the pandemic (£0.274m). 

 Transfer of government grant into Central to cover Covid-19 costs (-£0.481m). 
 

Delivery 
 

 An overspend in ICT relating to the purchase of computer software and licences and 
revenue contributions to capital (£0.198m). 

 Underspends on running costs in Office Accommodation (£0.120m) and Registration of 
Electors / Elections (-£0.105m). 

 An overspend within Waste Management primarily relating to the cost of waste disposal 
(£0.457m). 

 An overspend on Car Parks due to the loss of income (£1.019m) partly offset by a 
reduction in running costs (-£0.353m). 

 Financial support provided under the leisure contract because of the pandemic 
(£1.329m). 

 A net overachievement of income at the Cemetery and Crematorium (-£0.230m).  

 Transfer of government grant into Delivery to cover Covid-19 costs. 

People 

 An overspend on Education and Learning (£0.335m) resulting from overspends on 
staffing (£0.371m) and unbudgeted costs for renting modular classrooms during 
emergency roof repair works (£0.251m), partly offset by a number of underspends in 
particular a significant variance at the Open Learning Centre (-£0.107m). 

46



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 7 

 A net underspend on Children’s Social Care.  The most significant variances included 
underspends on staffing (-£0.316m), care leavers support and maintenance costs (-
£0.135m) and Childcare Solicitors (-£0.058m) and an overspend on care and 
accommodation costs (£0.243m). 

 An overspend on care packages within adult social care, primarily due to an increase in 
the number and cost of learning disability clients (£0.856m).  This was partly offset by 
underspends at Waymead, the in-house respite service, as it remained closed 
throughout the year (-£0.162m) and on staffing costs (-£0.250m).   

 An overspend on externally provided social care primarily due to clients in the 
community requiring support with memory & cognition (£0.656m).  An internal review of 
contracts within Forestcare helped achieve an underspend (-£0.184m). 

 An underspend on Early Help and Communities (-£0.940m).  The main elements were 
an underspend within Housing Welfare & Benefits (-£0.485m), largely caused by a 
reduction in the provision for bad debts, staff vacancies (-£0.425m) offset  by an 
overspend on Housing Management and Property (£0.303m) in both running and staff 
costs. 

 Transfer of government grant into People to cover Covid-19 costs (-£0.141m). 

Non-Departmental/Council Wide 

 A significant under spend on interest budgets (-£0.966m).  Average cash balances have 
been substantially higher than those experienced in 2019/20, removing the need for any 
new borrowing in 2020/21.  This has resulted from a combination of slippage on the 
capital programme, the underspend on the revenue budget and positive cashflows from 
grants being received and held for short periods pending their allocation. 

 Higher than forecast capital receipts in 2019/20 and significant capital carry forwards 
into 2020/21 helped to create an under spend against the Minimum Revenue Provision 
(-£0.148m). 

 An overspend relating to an additional payment to the Thames Valley Local Enterprise 
Partnership (£0.241m), increases in the levy payable to central government (£0.649m) 
and reductions in the section 31 grant receivable from central government (£0.326m) 
because of the actual, more positive outturn position on Business Rates. 

 The impact of the triennial pension revaluation on employers’ pension contributions was 
less than expected (-£0.088m). 

 Other under spends primarily relating to pension recharges and joint arrangements, and 
the provision for bad debts and write offs (-£0.133m). 

 Not all the Covid-19 LA Support Grant received from the government to help meet 
pressures resulting from the pandemic was required by directorates (-£1.810m). 

 Not all the Contingency Fund was required in 2020/21, resulting in an underspend (-
£1.930m). 

Earmarked Reserves 

 

 Transfers into the ICT Transformation (£0.189m) and the School Masterplans and 
Feasibility Studies (£0.055m) Reserves.  

 
The final accounts will be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee once the 
external audit is complete 
 
A full review of all the variances arising in 2020/21 will be undertaken so that any variances 
that have an impact in 2021/22 and beyond can be identified and built into the Council’s 
medium term financial plans. 
 
The General Reserves balance at 31 March 2021 was £10.327m. 

47



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 8 

Section 3: Strategic Themes 

Value for money 

 

48



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 9 

 
  

 

 
 

82.0% 

82.0% 

49



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 10 

Economic resilience 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

82.0% 

82.0% 

82.0% 

82.0% 

50



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 11 

Education and skills 
 

 

51



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 12 

 

52



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 13 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

82.0% 

82.0% 

82.0% 

53



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 14 

Caring for you and your family 

 

54



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 15 

 
 

 

55



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 16 

Protecting and enhancing our environment 

 

56



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 17 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 18 

Communities 
 

 

58



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 19 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

59



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 20 

Section 4: Corporate Health  

 

a) Summary of People  
 

Staff Voluntary Turnover 
 

Department 
Previous 
Figure* 

For the last 
4 quarters 

Notes 

People 14.16% 13.28%  

Delivery 5.55% 7.61%  

Resources 7.21% 5.26%  

PPR 10.62% 8.86%  

Chief Executive’s Office 9.3% 5%  

Total Voluntary Turnover 11.5% 11.16%  

    * This figure relates to the previous 4 quarters and is taken from the preceding CPOR.  

 
Comparator data % 

Total voluntary turnover for BFC, 2019/20:                         11.9% 

Average voluntary turnover rate UK public sector 2016:                     10.0% 

Average Local Government England voluntary turnover 2016:   14.0% 

    (Source: XPertHR Staff Turnover Rates and Cost Survey 2016 and LGA Workforce Survey 2016) 

60



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 21 

Staff Sickness 
 

Department 
Quarter 4 

20/21 (days 
per employee) 

Previous Financial 
Year (Actual 

Average days per 
employee) 

2020/21 Estimated 
Annual Average 

(days per 
employee) 

Notes 

People 1.57 9.38 5.93  

Delivery 1.42 6.61 7.67  

PPR 0.68 4.06 2.47  

Resources 1.86 8.29 4.65  

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

0.71 2.17 2.3 
 

Total staff 
sickness excluding 
maintained 
schools 

1.41 8.28 5.67 

 

 
 

Comparator data All employees, average days sickness 
absence per employee 

Bracknell Forest Council 2019/20                               8.28 days 

English Local Authorities 2017/18       8.6 days 

(Source: Local Government Workforce Survey 2017/18) 

 
People 
Sickness absence has decreased slightly over the last quarter. Children’s Social Care shows 
a large reduction from Q3 as does Commissioning.  Adults Social Care is the only area 
where absence has increased but due to the nature of their work it is to be expected that 
they will have higher rates than other areas of the authority.  Just over half (52%) of the 
absence for Q4 was attributed to long term sickness. Covid-19 related sickness absence 
stands at 16.5% of the total absence this quarter which has increased in line with national 
trends.  Over the whole of 20-21 the People Directorate has had a lower absence level than 
BFC did for 19-20. 
 
Delivery 
Absence this quarter has decreased compared to Quarter 3.  All areas except Property 
Services have reduced this quarter however levels remain low overall.  In total just over half 
(52%) of the absence was due to long term sickness.  These figures also include Covid-19 
related sickness levels which have increase in the last quarter in line with national trends.  
40% of the sickness was Covid-19 related this quarter.  Delivery even with the Covid-19 
pandemic has lower levels of absence than BFC as a whole in 2019-20. 
 
Central 
Absence levels have risen slightly since the last quarter. 36% of the absence is down to long 
term sickness cases.  Covid-19 sickness counts 18% of the total absence this quarter which 
has increased in line with national trends.  For the whole of 2020-21 Central Directorates 
had a lower absence rate including Covid-19 than the BFC figure for 2019-20. 
 
 

61



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 22 

b) Summary of Complaints  
 

Department Type of 
complaint 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Total 

cumulative 
complaints 

Outcome of all complaints received year 
to date 

People: Adults Statutory 

12 5 10 9 36 

1 – in progress  
4 – upheld/fully substantiated 
16 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
12 – not upheld/not substantiated 
2 – no finding made 
1 – external investigation 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 2 0 0 2 
2 – Not upheld 

People: Childrens Statutory stage 1 

11 13 25 24 73 

3 – in progress 
4 – upheld/fully substantiated 
31 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
20 – not upheld/not substantiated 
11 - no finding made 
4 – proceeded to stage 2 

Statutory stage 2 

0 1 0 3 4 

1 – in progress 
2 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
0 – not upheld/not substantiated 
1 - cancelled 

Statutory stage 3 0 0 0 2 2 2 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 

Stage 2 
1 3 2 0 6 

0 – upheld 
6 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
0 – not upheld/not substantiated 

Stage 3 
0 2 1 2 5 

0 – upheld 
4 – partially upheld 
1 – not upheld/not substantiated 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

3 1 1 1 6 
1 – upheld 
4 – Partially 
1 – not upheld 

People: Housing 

Stage 2 1 0 1 2 4 4 – not upheld 

Stage 3 0 0 0 0 0  

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 0 0 0 0 
 

Central Stage 2 

6 2 5 2 15 

3 – in progress 
0 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
6 – not upheld 
4 - upheld 
2 – proceeded to stage 3 

Stage 3 
1 1 3 2 7 

1 – in progress 
6 – not upheld 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 1 1 0 2 
2 – not upheld 

Delivery Stage 2 0 0 2 0 2 2 – not upheld 

Stage 3 
1 1 1 0 3 

2 – in progress 
1 – proceeded to LGO 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 1 0 0 1 

1 – not upheld 

 
People: Adults 
There were 9 complaints in quarter 4.  Compared to this time last year, this is two more.  
 
People: Childrens 
There were 32 complaints in quarter 4.  Compared to this time last year, the figure is up from 
24.  This is 8 more.   
 
Central 
There were 4 complaints in quarter 4.  Compared to this time last year, the figure is down 
from 6.  This is 2 less.   

62



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 4 2020/21  Page 23 

Delivery 
There were no complaints in quarter 4.  Compared to this time last year, the figure is down 
from 1. 

c) Strategic Risks and Audits 
 
During quarter 4 audit reports with major recommendations were issued on raised cyber 
liability, reactive maintenance, management of commercial property, the Public Protection 
Partnership, busines rates and council tax.  
 

During quarter 4 the Register was reviewed by the Strategic Risk Management Group and 
the Corporate Management Team on 4 February 2021 and CMT on 10 March 2021 
respectively before being presented to the Governance and Audit Committee on 24th 
March.  The following changes were agreed:  

 

 To decrease the finance and economic risk due to increased level of central 
government funding;  

 To decrease the Brexit risk due to the reduced level of uncertainty following the 
signing of the EU agreement;  

 Early in quarter 4 the COVID risk score was increased when the national lockdown 
came into force and the number of cases was rising significantly but this was then 
reduced as the vaccination programme was progressing and COVID cases were 
significantly reduced; and 

 To reduce the children’s social care risk as the number of looked after children had 
reduced. 

 

63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Community Safety
	7 Council Plan Overview Report
	CPOR Q4 Jan-Mar 2021, 21/09/2021 Executive


